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Atto”rneys for Plamtlffs Jeff Pokorny and Larry Blenn

- UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

- N ORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

J eff okomy and Larry Blenn ®

g COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY
T egplaintit:fs G

TRIAL
;”es Ron PuryearJr Georgia { C[ASS ACTION

ind World Wlde Group, LLC,
M de L.L.C.,"American Multxmedla

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
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COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

.

Plamtlffs Jeff Pokorny and Larry Blenn on behalf of themselves and those similarly

‘; situated “sue" defendants Quixtar Inc. (“Quixtar”), Ron Puryear, Georgia Lee Puryear, World

W1de Group, L.L.C., Britt Worldwide L.L.C., American Multlmedra Inc., Britt Management,

’Inc B111 'tt ‘and Peggy Britt, and allege as follows:

Nature of Action

Thls is an actron to recover damages caused by defendants operation of a
~.pyram1 scheme Thrs pyrarmd scheme is fraudulent because it mduces md1v1duals to invest in

produc ) and marketmg tools and to recruit new victims into the scheme with the false pronuse '

of enormous proﬁts. - The pyrarmd scheme here consists of two separate, but related
| busrnessest Quixtar, Inc., a multilevel marketing business, and the “Kingpins Corporations,”
which are a group of businesses that sell purported motivational materials and services to
dlstnbutors of Qulxtar ] products New entrants into the pyramid scheme are eﬁ‘ectlvely
requlred to mvest money to buy products from Quixtar and “tools and functions” from the
ngpm Corporatlons Because Quixtar dlstrlbutors (euphemistically referred to as
“Independent Busmess Owners” (or “IBO’s” by Quixtar)) most often do not sell products to
consumers who are not also distributors, they can obtain a return on their investment in the
metar program only by recrultlng new distributors who will then buy products (and recruit

more d1str1butors who will buy products) which purchases result in “bonuses” to the recruiting

dlstnbutor

!ype of Actlon
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1nd1v1dual *th's resides in the county of Alameda, in the state of California. Pokorny entered

mto a Reglstratron Agreement with Amway and became an Amway distributor on or about

. 1 October 1994 He later became a Quixtar dlstnbutor when the Amway organization launched .

,,;Qulxtar at Whlch time all Amway distributors in the United States were converted to Quixtar

"'dlS ‘ ‘butors ’,Whﬂe a dlstnbutor, Pokorny was in the World Wlde DreamBullders’ “line of

18 Qulxtar dlstnbutorshlp under the name “Pokorny Enterprisés.”

who resides in the county of San Joaquin, in the state of Cahforma. Blenn entered into the
Quixtar Registration Agreement with Quixtar and became a Quixtar distributor on or about
January ’2005. Whilea distributor, Blenn was in the World Wide DreamBuilders’ “line of -
sponsorship” run by defendants Ron Puryear and Georgia Lee Puryear. Blenn operated his
Quintar di.vstributorship_under the name “Blenn Enterprises.”

5. | Defendant Quixtar, Inc. (“Quixtar”) is, and at all:relevant times was, a
corporatlon‘ orgamzed under the laws of the state of Vlrglma, w1th its prmclpal place of -

busmess in: the state of Mlchlgan, and domg busmess regularly throughout the United States, -

ok mcludmg in the state of Cahforma Qulxtar transacts 1ts busmess in the Noxthern Dlstnct of

' Parties

Plaintiff Jeff Pokomy (“Pokorny”) is, and at all material times was, an

p”;run by defendants Ron Puryear and Georgla Lee Puryear Pokorny operated h1s |

4. Plamtlff Larry Blenn (“Blenn”) is, and at all material times was, an 1nd1v1dua1

g

TAND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL ~
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: 1 i)nnclpal t)iace of busmess in the state of Washington and doing business regularly in the state
; 2 1 of Cahforma World Wlde Group transacts its business in the Northern District of California in
3 : 7 accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 1965(a) and (b) and California Code of Civil Procedure § 410.10.
% Defendant World Wide Gréup isin the “tools and functions” business and sells its products to
: distnbutors *incl, dlng: plamtlﬁ World Wide Group also does business under the name of

: ‘7 : World W1de Dream Builders |

‘ 8‘ ' 7. ,;Defendant Ron Puryear is, and at"albl relevanttimes was, an individual residing
9| i thecounty o Spokane,in the stateof Washingto. Defendant Ron Puryea s an ower of

: 10 l World Wide Dream ;Bluilders and/or World Wide Group and individually does business m E
1 Caiifornia. Ron Puryear transacts his business and promotes the World Wide Dream Builders
12 “line of sponsorship,” as explained further herein, in the Northern District of California in
Ii accordance w1th 18 U S.C. § 1965(a) and (b) and Cahforma Code of Civil Procedure § 410.10.

_ 15. ’8. Defendant Georgia Lee Puryear is, and at all relevant times was, an individual
16 || residing in the county of Spokane, in the state of Washington. Defendant Georgia Lee Puryear
17 | is an owner of World Wide Dream Builders and/or World Wide Group, which does business
18 throughout the state of Cahforma and individually does business in California. Georgia Lee

| 19 ' Puryear transacts her busmess and promotes the World Wide Dream Builders “line of

v( :.(1) / sponsorship, as e):nlained further herem in the Northern Distnct of Cahforma in accordance
wﬁh;18 U S C §.‘ 965ta) and (b) and Cahforma Code of C1v11 Procedure § 410.10.

ritt World “d"’L ' c "(“Bntt Worldwrde”) is, and atall relevant

ganized under the laws of ' re state of .. ashmgton with its pnnmpal "

f 'Washmgton and domg busmess regularly throughout the state

ritt orldw1de is the up] ine “hne of sponsorship to defendants

and Georgla Lee Puryear.‘ In other words, defendants World
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: .,.,;Wlde Group, Ron Puryear and Georgia Lee Puryear report to and work with Defendant Britt

; Worldw1de to promote thelr “tools and functlons” businesses. Defendant Britt Worldwide is in

1€ “tools and functlons” busmess and sells its products to distributors. Defendant Britt

:‘;:?Worldvmde transacts 1ts busmess in the Northern District of California in accordance w1th 18

U S C,‘ § 1965(a) and (b) and Cahforma Code of Civil Procedure § 410.10.

- 1 0 Defendant Amencan Multlmedla Inc (“American Multimedia”) is, and atall

: relevant tlmes was, a corporatlon orgamzed under the laws of the state of North Carolina, with

1 '1ts pnn‘ ipal place of busmess in the state of North Carohna and doing business regularly

j) throughout the state of Ca.hforma Defendant American Multlmedla is in the “tools and
functions” busmess and sells its products to distributors. Defendant American Multimedia
tl"ansacts its business in the Northern District of California in accordance with 18 U.S.C. §
1965(a) and (b) and California Code of Civil Procedure § 410.10.

| 11.  Defendant Britt Management Inc (“Bntt Management”) is, and ‘at all relevant
timeswas, a corporation organized under the laws of the state of Nevada, with its principal

. place of business in the state of Nevada and doing business regularly throughout the state of
Callforma Defendant Bntt Management Inc.isin the ‘tools and functions™ business and sells

its products to dlstrlbutors Defendant Britt Management transacts its business in the Northern

Brltt 1s, and at all relevant tlmes was, an md1v1dual citizen

g mkthe state of North Carohna Defendant Bill Bntt isan .

! ncan Multlmedla and Britt Management which are in the
and whlch all do busmess throughout the state of Cahforma.

me “hne of sponsorshlp to‘ Ron Puryear and Georgia Lee

OMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
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:Puryé‘ar.' In other words, Defendant Bill Britt advises and works with Ron Puryear and Georgia

"Lee Puryear to promote their “line of sponsorshlp and their “tools and functions” business.

&'_;Defendant B111 Britt transacts his business and promotes his “line of sponsorship” in the

,‘Noxthem Dlstnct of California in accordance with the 18 U.S.C. § 1965(a) and (b) and

: ,‘_"ECahforma Code of C1v11 Procedure § 410.10.

i o o 13 " Defendant Peggy Britt is, and at all relevant times was, an individual citizen

K residiu'g""’in the ‘county of Orange in_the state of North Carolina. Defendant Peggy Britt is an

wner of "Bntt Worldvnde “American Multlmedla, and Britt Management, which are in the
“tools”and functlons” business and which all do business throughout the state of Cahforma
Defendant Peggy Britt is the upline “line of sponsorship” to Ron Puryear and Georgia Lee
Puryear." In other words, Defendant Peggy Britt advises and works with Ron Puryear and
Georgiéi Lee Puryear to promote their “line of sponsorship” and their “tools and functions”
busmess Defendant Peggy Britt transacts her business and promotes her “line of sponsorship”
in »the Northern District of Californiat in accordance with the 18 U.S.C. § 1965(a) and (b) and _
California Code of Civil Procedure § 410.10.

14 “ All of the above named defendants had sufficient and continuous contact with

‘the Normem District of California in that, among other things, the defendants have been

: actlvely promotlng the pyramrd scheme through the use of mails and wires in the district,

; ‘selhng products in the dlstnct promotmg their “tools and functlons” busmesses in the district,

eir “lmes of sponsorshlp” in the drstnct

Junsdlctlon and Venue

: The defenda.nts are subject to the Junsdrctlon of thrs Court The corporate
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tortious acts in this State. The individual defendants have at all relevant times been engaged in

che’ntinuous‘ and systematic business in this State and/or have committed tortious acts in this

, State:' "I'he actlons giving rise to this lawsuit were taken by defendants at least in part in

f Callfornla‘ }Pl&lﬂtlﬁS Pokomy and Blenn are citizens of California. In accordance with 18

U S. C §3' 965(a) and (b), the defendants are subject to this Court’s jurisdiction in that they

. “transa affalrs” in the Northern District of California and “the ends of justice require that

B “‘other partles re51d1ng in any other district be brought before the Court, the Court may cause

: suc i summoned and process for the purpose may be served in any Jud1c1al district
ed States by the marshal thereof.” 18 U.S.C. § 1965(a) and: (b). In accordance with
‘Cahforma 'S long-arm statute, California Code of Civil Procedure § 410.10, this Court has
) personal Junsdlctlon over the defendants.

16. (% Because plaintiffs Pokorny and Blenn assert claims pursuant to the Racketeer
| v’Inﬂuenced Corrupt Orgamzatlons Act (“RICO™), 18 U.S. C §§ 1961 — 1968, thls Court has
Junsdlctlon over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331. Because plaintiffs Pokorny and
, Blenn assert state law claims under the California Business and Professions Code, this Court
gyléié}éiée'sﬁpplemental jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367.
& 17 Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) and (c) and 18

: U S /Cv -§ 11 965(a) and (b) because a substantial number of the acts and transactions that gave

‘nse to ‘the clalms of the plamtlffs and the plaintiff class occurred within this District;

OMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

s
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" Reéistration Agreement is unconscionable.

“;distfrict; and the ends of justice require that parties residing in other districts be brought before

this Court,”

The Arbitration Agreement

' }_1 8. Before becoming Quixtar distributors, prospective distributors, including

”plamtlffs and members of the class were requlred to sign Quixtar’s Registration Agreements
}In very small pnnt buned in the Registration Agreement there is an arbitration provision. The

‘ arbltrqtron provrsron is prov1ded on a “take-it-or-leave-it” basis with no opportunity for

The prospectlve distributors recelved no explanatron of the arbrtratlon provrslon

| and would not have been permltted to become Quixtar dlstrlbutors unless they signed the

Registration 'A greement which contains the offending and unenforceable arbitration provision.
As a result of the unequal bargéining positions, the hidden terms and the overall harshness of

the adhes1ve arbltratlon provision, Quixtar’s arbitration provision is procedurally

'unconscmnable Plamtlffs do not assert that the entire Registration Agreement is

‘unconscionable; rather they assert that the arbitration provision contained in Quixtar’s

19, - Quixtar’s arbitration provision is also permeated with substantively

"uneon§Cionahle~tenns as demonstrated by the following examples, whieh are not exhaustive.

The arbltratron prov1s1on mcorporates Qulxtar’s Rules of Conduct. See Exhibit

COMPLA
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| § these Rules . ...~ Quixtar’s unilateral right to modify renders the arbitration agreement

f;snh;s‘tantively unconscionable.

” 2 : Qurxtar s arbitration provision is also substantively unconscionable to the extent

~‘1t provrdes arbrtrators blased by virtue of Quixtar’s ability to “train” the arbitrators who are to

resolve drsputes

.2 V Qulxtar’s arbltratlon provision subJ ects drstnbutors to proh1b1t1vely expensive

arbitration;fees thereby rendering the agreement substantively unconscionable. Quixtar’s

brtratlon 'greement requrres an mdrvrdual to pay “location” costs for the arbitration and

hearmg costs that total $18,000.00 for a three day trial. These excessive hearrng fees work to
preclude_ djstributors from vindicating their rights. While rules do provide for indigent relief,
| the likelihood of being able to establish indegency is difficult and the decision rests with the

Case Admmrstrator. |

| 23. The Qulxtar arbrtrat10n agreement arbitrarily provides a two year statute of
limitation for any claims brought by a distributor against Quixtar. This provision severely
limits a diStributor’s right where, as in this case, the plaintiffs are seeking relief under a federal -

j 'statlrte‘thatprovldes a fonr year statute of limitations.

’ 24 : Inladdition ‘fQ-uixtarv’s arbitration provision purports to restrict a distributor’s

’nght to bnng a class action. Thrs class action restnctron further renders the arbitration

provrsron substannvely unconscronable

\Frnally, Qurxtar’s mandatory pre-arbrtratron conciliation process also renders : ‘
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the program rewards whrch are unrelated to sale of the product to ultimate users.’

[
»

:26. . Because Quixtar’s arbitration provision is unconscionable, the claims of the

plalntlffs and the class are not subject to arbitration and this action is properly before this

Court.
The Nature of Pyramid Schemes
) 27 While pyramid schemes can take different forms, they are at core inherently

: {.flllegal schemes by which their perpetrators mduce others to join the scheme with the promise

of hlgh proﬁts and rewards from a putative busmess The reality of the schemes however, is

‘ “JthatreWa_rﬁds'to those that join come almost exclusively from the recruitment of new partrcrpant N

victims of the scheme.

28.  “Like chain letters, pyramid schemes may make money for those at the top of
the chain or pyramid, but “must end up disappointing those at the bottom who can find no
recrults ” Webster v. Omnitrition Int’l. Inc., 79 F.3d 776 781 (9" Cir. 1996) (quoting In re

Koscot Interplanetary, Inc 86 F.T.C. 1106, 1181 (1975), aff'd mem. sub nom., Turner v.

F.T.C., 580 F.2d 701 (D.C. Cir. 1978)). As such, “[p]yramid schemes are said to be inherently

fraudulent . . . t” Omnitrition at 781.

29. Pyramid schemes are characterized as “[s]uch contrivances are characterized by
the payment by participants cf money to the company in return for which they receive (1) the
nght to sell a product and (2) the right to receive 1n retum for recruiting other participants mto A

Ommtrztzon o
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expectation of recouping it to some degree via recruitment are bound to be disappointed.’”
| Ommtrmon a7g2.

| 5 31 The Ninth Circuit has adopted the Koscot standard and has held that “the
iop_eratio_n ofa ;ryramid scheme constitutes fraud for purposes of several federal antifraud

statutes.” Omnitritr‘on at 782.

327 defines an endless chain (or pyramid scheme) as follows:

%

fraudulent pyramid scheme. The defendant companies and individuals recruit people to

become Quixtar distributors, entice them to purchase Quixtar products and related “tools and
ﬁ1nctions” through material false statements and omissions, and then distribute the proceeds of :
product sales to new recruits based almost ‘exclusively on participants’ recruitment of new
victims,\rather than on the sale of products to retail users of Quixtar’s products. Asa result of

mvesting’ in the scheme plaintiffsi and the c1ass have suffered millions of dollars in losses.

use of the Umted States mall and rnterstate w1re commumcatlons Through therr creatlon and

operatlon of :the pyramrd scheme, defendant pecrfically intended to and drd in fact, defraud

the dlstnbutors, moludlng plalntlffs and the members of the class

‘;;}uiany Ascheme for the disposal or dlstnbutlon of property whereby a participant pays a
~valuable consideration for the chance to receive compensation for introducing . .
- -additional persons into participation in the scheme or for the chance to receive

34. The defendants have operated and promoted the fraudulent scheme through the

32, California law also renders pyramid schemes illegal. California Penal Code §

compensation when a person introduced by the participant introduces a new participant.
Compensation . . . does not . . . include payment based upon sales made to persons who
are not part101pants in the scheme and who are not purchasing in order to participate in
the scheme.

Quixtar and the Kingpins Operations Con_stitute a Pyramid Scheme

33.  Quixtar, the Kingpin Companies, and the individual defendants operate a

' The first part ,mf the lllegal pyramld scheme consrsts of a multi-level marketmg
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‘-ipdependent distributors, euphemistically referred to as IBOs. Quixtar induces new recruits to

i _]omtheQulxtar program through material false representations that such recruits will be able to

re-sel Qulxtar products for a profit. Quixtar purports to sell its consumer products through the

IBO "‘A‘fbﬁt_;‘infact few of Qnixtar’s products are ever sold to anyone other than the IBOs, and

| IBO not ﬁnancially rewarded by Quixtar or its affiliated companies for selling the products

1 kl\‘ers. +The oﬁees'IBOs pay for Quixtar’s products (and associated costs) are so high

roﬁt on retail sales is virtually impossible. In practice, 95% of Quixtar’s products are

‘ ]jnof‘js‘old-'to,retrai‘l consumers, but rather to the IBOs. Beceuse the IBOs are Quixtar’s actual

customersand eonsumersof its products, Quixtar requires an ever expanding network of so-
called distributors (IBOs) in order to keep Qnixtar afloat.

| 36. -Quixtar’s lowest level distributors are instructed not to waste their time on
marketing and selling the Quixtar products to actual retail consumers, but instead to focus on
consummgthe products themselves and recruiting others to be distributors. Quixtar provides
its diStrihdtors with lists of products they should purchase for their own use in order to turn
their home into a “300 PV Home” (a PV is point system by which distributors earn “bonuSes”). :
SeeEnhihit 2, The 300 PV Home flyer. Quixtar products would be difficult to sell to
consumehs unaffiliated with Qujxtar in any event because they are sold by Quixtar at inflated

. pnces when compared to similar products sold in the retall marketplace.

New dlstnbutors are ass1gned to an ex1st1ng “line of sponsorshlp” to which the

' :-;recrultlng S "butor already belongs The hnes of sponsorshlp include a hlerarchy of

. 'dlstnbutor that start w1th the newly-recrmted dlstnbutors and proceed by semonty up to a

senior dxstnbuto‘ "who heads the line of SpOIlSOl'Sth The‘most senlor d1stnbutor who heads a

£ "lme of:sponsors! ‘p is known as‘a ngpm ». Jumor (or “downlme k‘dlstnbutors purchase

. COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
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thé“‘too}g and functions” described below. Bonuses are paid to upline distributors based on

sales onulxtar products‘and “tools and functions” to downline distributofs.~

:3, 8 | Ac@drding to Quixtar’s website, there are currently sixteen lines of sponsorship:
B va.. World Wide DreamBuildcrs; |

~ Yager (InterNET Services);

Brit;

. d " Network 21;
'  e. . Tegm;
f. InterNet Associates (INA);
bg. eFinity;
h. Int'ernational Connection;
i International Leadership Development (ILD);
| j- - MMP (MarkerMan Productions);
k. . proalliance;

L. Interbiz;

IBO Alliance;

“'n. GlobalNet;
Pronst_emOne; and

.GBO Alhance

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL'
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" “_,dlstnbutor ;»Although the ngpms are Quixtar dlstnbutors and are compensated on Quixtar’s
7 1 sales of products to other lower level d1str1butors within their lines of sponsorship, the majority
8. entlels derlved from the “tools and functions” business of their Kingpin
9 ..Corporatlons’ 'Lower level d1str1butors in the lines of sponsorshlp are effectlvely required to -
10 | _plnchase the “tools and f\mctlons” from the Kingpin Corporations. D1str1butors are told that
1 the “tools and functions” are necessary to help thém become successful Qulxtar distributors.
2 For example the starter kit for new IBOs, which is distributed by Quixtar, states unequivocally
| 12 as follows: | | .
15 I‘XS wi”th'any business, there will obviously be an investment involved. You will need
) ¢ tools > to build your business successfully.
16 See Exhlblt 4, IBO Starter Kit at p. 15 (emphasis added). The starter kit provided by Quixtar to
1 new d1str1butors mcludes a list of tools that are recommended for purchase by all new
i: i:;":dlsmbutors i Thentotal cost of thxs initial set of tapes and materials is $434.94. Id. at p. 16.

N [\
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sold by World W1de Group contams a section specifically designed to teach IBOs how to

recruit new IB ;_For example the section “Invite Your Prospects” provides:
Invmng your prospects is where it starts to get fun..
Tips: Beina hurry and keep it simple. The most common mlstake is saying too much
LfHi :thisis - . Are you going to be home tomorrow night? Great I
: _]LlSt got back from a seminar that explamed how to create an income by using the
' technology of the internet. I grabbed you some information (tape/v1deo/CD) because I
x-thought you mJght be mterested

See Exhlblt 4 IBO Starter Klt at p. 11.

~ 43. In truth dlstnbutors are recrulted to Qulxtar because Qulxtar omlts to inform the

:’dlstrlbutors that they are entermg mto an 1llega1 pyramld scheme and that the overwhelmmg

majority'of diStributors lose money, rather than earn money. These are material omissions.
44.  The ownership of the “tools and functions” businesses demonstrates the close

association between the Quixtar Kingpins, their “tools and functions” businesses, and Quixtar’s

lines of sponsorship: -
Tools & Functions Business Kingpin Owners Affiliated Line of
_ Sponsorship
World Wide Dream Builders | Ronald and Georgia Lee World Wide Group
w C Puryear
Intet'het ,vSleii'vice Corporation | Dexter and Birdie Yaéet Yager
MarkerMan Productions | Jody and Kathy Victor Yager
7 Amencan Multimetiia, Inc. - | Bill and Peggy Britt- Britt
work2l . Jim and Nancy Dornan | | Network 21
Orrin and Laurie Woodward | Team
j J1m and Margee Flo'orj o *| InterNET Associates
b | (INA)
Group;ﬂof lleaelers | eFinity |
Brian andMarg Hays. . = ,;gtemaﬁond Connection
| Jack and Rita Daughery | international Leadership

;o
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1 Tools'& Functions Business Kingpin Owners Affiliated Line of
Ml P Sponsorship
Development
Jody and Kathy Victor MMP (MarkerMan
Productions)
N Pro “A_lhance Group of leaders ‘ proalliance
: Interbxz i Brad and Vera Doyle Interbiz
IBO Alllance Group of leaders IBO Alliance
| GlobalNet Leif and Bonnie Johnson GlobalNet
" ProSy mOne Joe and Dawn Pici ProSystemOne
vGBOnAyllbi‘ance Carl and Marsha Reardon GBO Alliance

This group of “tools and functions” businesses will be collectively referred to as “Kingpin

Corporations” and the distributors who own those businesses are collectively referred to as

“Kingpins.”

45.  While Quixtar and the Kingpins (and their Kingpin Corporations) independently

perpetrate a fraud on distributors, they also have a symbiotic relationship that furthers their

ability to carry on the pyramid scheme and have agreed to work together to promote and

perpetuate the pyramid scheme. -
- 46.~ By way of example, Quixtar’s “Achieve Magazine ” which is distributed by

Qulxtar to dlstnbutors through the Umted States mall promotes the Kingpins’ tools business.

‘ The Jai anuary 2001 issue of Ach1eve Magazme contalns a _]Olnt promotional statement by

mced than ever that the largrest busmess is yet to be bu11t
t as’ easﬂy be someone 'who possesses a dream and reads thlS
perhaps hstens to a motlvatmg tape, attends a

16 /
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E qunchon and begins to build their dream by showing the plan and shanng their dream

"y“Sé;-Exhlblt»SZT'TAchieve MagaZine January/F ebruary 2001 issue at p.3. The following pages of

the Qulxtar Ach1eve Magazme promote the World Wide Group’s “tools” business with

, 'ady_ert' ‘ n;ents for tapes, bo‘ok_s and videos sold by the defendant Puryears and the World Wide

p 14,
47 ' Plamtlffs scheme violates the federal RICO and mail and wire statutes and the

‘Cahformak‘P \ nal Code § 327 because itisa fraudulent pyramld scheme or “endless cham

even 1f defendants can estabhsh comphance with the FTC’s declslon inInre

Accord 1 gly,
Amway Corp..', 93 F.T.C. 618 (1979), which they cannot as explained below, the scam
nevertheless \tiolates the federal mail and wire statutes and the California Penal Code § 327.

| 48.k The defendants and others have attempted to mask their criminal conduct behind
a25 year old FTC order, 1n Amway, which held that Quixtar’s predecessor company, Amway,
was not a pyram1d scheme. Quixtar and its associates actions do constitute a scheme to defraud
under t'ederal ll'a.w, and do not even meet the requirements described in the Amway order.

'1549. " InAmway, the F TC ruled that Amway was}not a pyramid scheme because it

| adopted and, purportedly, enfOrced certain rules that were intended to avoid the characteristics of -
.a pyram1d scheme , | |

a 50 : The FTC held that a direct marketing busmess like Amway would not be

me 1f e sponsor of the busmess did not v1olate the “initial

16 “buiyback” rule, an’d}the “10 customer” rule, all of which
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"‘td“the,pron()uneements on its website, Quixtar operates a byramid scheme, and its rules and
-policies are a sham, meant to give the appearance that Quixtar complies with the rules

' descnbed in Amwdy, but which are routinely ignored in practice.

'Amvolve a payment or initial disbursement by anew part101pant in exchange for the right to sell
‘ products and the right to receive rewards, in return for recrultmg other participants into the
_program and which are unrelated to sale of product to the ultimate user. The FTC found that

: Amwayd1 netteqn_ilje such an investment because “the Amway system does not involve an

‘ ‘mvestmen Pye‘ntory by a new distributor. A kit of sales literature costing only $15.60 is the

\and the other defendants requlre a s1gmﬁcant mvestment by anew dlstnbutor Each new

: The Amway system is based on retail sales to consumers. Respondents have avoided
- the abuses of pyramid schemes by (1) not having a ‘headhunting’ fee; (2) making

- ‘product salés a precondition to receiving the performance bonus; (3) buymg back
~sexcessive inventory; and (4) requiring that products be sold to consumers Amway s

3 buy-back 70% and ten customer rules deter unlawful inventory loading . .

53 The Initial Investment Rule: The FTC decision noted that pyramid schemes

oniy re'qu1s1te In re Amway Corp 93 F.T.C. 618, [107] ( 1979). Today, however, Quixtar

'r be an mvestment mvolved You

E)dﬁbit 4,1BO Starter Kitat p. 15

Y TRIAL




LLP

SCHILLER & FLEXNER
CALIFORNIA

OAKLAND,

BOIES,

o e \"].é.\ R A RN SE

NN NN N NN ;
”-ﬂ-.?}u‘,;-hww—‘g'-é;:;G,EGE}:

H.
L

(empha81s added) Quixtar’s Achieve Magazine for May/June 2006 encourages existing IBOs

to have new reglstrants purchase products at the same time they register:
i l;': Actlvatlon The biggest factor affecting activation is whether an IBO buys products at
- -registration. Quixtar’s data says that IBOs who reg1ster with PV are much likelier to

' order products after registration. To impact actlvatzon promote the purchase of
K products with every registration.

See Exhlblt 7; F our Szgns of Buszness Health, Achleve Magazme May/June 2006 issue at p-
18 Wh11e Qulxtar’s initial s1gn up fee is $1 17 00, in practlce, defendants requlre an initial

1nvestment by anew dlstnbutor in an average amount of between $2000 and $4000 in the first

twelve months through the purchase of products and the ‘“tools and functions” matenals

54, In Omnitrition, like Quixtar, there was no significant charge to become a
,distn'butor and the distributors had no quota of product that they had to buy. Omnitrition at
780. However, in order to receive any benefit from the system or to move up to the next level
as a “Bronze Supervisor,” the distributors had to purchase and convince three other recruits to
»purchaseba certain amount of product. Id. thixtar has a similar structure where advancement
is based_on both the amount of product the IBO self consumes and the number of persons the

IBO can recrult as d1str1butors to hkevwse purchase Qulxtar’s products. In Ommitrition the

multllevel marketer argued that its busmess plan did not meet the first element of the Koscot
test because' 1t does not charge for the right to sell its prOducts at the distributor level” but the

court dlsagreed Id at 782 The court explained that i in order to move up within the

Ommtntlon pyramxd scheme i i

Jrcxpant must pay a substantial amount of | mo ey to Ommtntlon in the Jorm of -
mont Iy product orders. In exchange for these purchases, the supervisor receives
He right to sell the products and earn compensatzi; based on product orders made by
he upervisor s recrutts ‘This compensation is facially ‘unrelated to the sale of product
timate ! s” because it is paid based on the suggested retail price of the amount
Vi rdered from mmtrmon rather than based on actual sales to consumers. On its face,
‘Omnitrition’s program appears to be a pyramid scheme. Omnitrition cannot save itself

ply by ointmg to the fact that it makes some. retazl sales.

Id at 782 (emphas15 added) Qulxtar’s pyramid scheme 1s analogous to Omnitrition’s.

19
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55. B The “70%” Rule: In the Amway decision, the FTC explained the 70% rule as

'foli{)’yvs:i ‘f[t]o ensure that distributors do not attempt to secure the performance bonus solely on

the ;hasie-_‘cf purchases, Amway requires that, to receive a performance bonus, distributors must

: resellv at lee.ét 70% of the products they have purchased each month....Amway enforces the
“70% rule » Amway, 93 F.T.C. 61 8 at 72-75. Quixtar has a 70% rule in the Quixtar Business

Reference Gurde

An IBO must sell at least 70% of the total amount of products purchased during a given
_month in order to receive the Performance Bonus or recognition due on all the products
"c.hased if the IBO fails to sell at least 70%, then such IBO may be paid that o
-percentage of Performance Bonus measured by the amount of products actually sold,

rather than the amount of products purchased, and recognized accordingly.

: See Exh1b1t 8 Busrness Reference Guide at D-19 (Rules of Conduct 4.18). In practice, Quixtar

does not enforce the 70% rule and allows product purchaees for self-consumption by IBOs and
sales to the downline distributors to count toward the 70% retail sales. See Exhibit 9, Jamfé.ry
20,2004 'Memo from Ron Mitchell of Quixtar’s Rules Administration Office. Thus, Quixtar

also violates the 70% rule of the Amway decision.

56.  The “Buyback” Rule: In the Amway decision, the FTC described the buyback

rule as follows: “Amway, the Direct Distributor or the snonsoring distributor will buy back any .
unnéed marketable products from a distributor whose inventory is not moving or who wishes to
leave the 'business . . Amway enforces the buy-back rule . Amway, 93 F.T.C. 618 at [72-

Al
75] Qulxtar’s buyback rule set forth in Section D-22 of the Rules of Conduct Rule 5.3.6

provrdes that ;

 resigning their IBO, upon their request, any unused curréntly marketable products
and/or currently, marketable literature and merchandising’or business-building
aids...The IBO shall offer to repurchase said products, literature, and merchandising or
‘usrness- bulldmg a1ds at a price mutually agreeable to the departmg IBO.

are reqmred to purchase back from any of ‘iﬂ\en personally reglstered IBOs who

Busmess Reference Guide at D-22. In practrce, however, Qurxtar does not

enforcethe“‘buyback pollcy for 1ts products First, its rule provxdes‘)tlrat the ;buyback price w111
2 . ST o
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Gmde at D-22

. . Vo .

be “mutually agreeable » and, in practice the lower level distributor is at the mercy of whatever

prlce its upline distributor decides to pay for the retumed inventory, whrch is typically a
‘fractlon of the original price paid by the distributor. Second, distributors are uniformly

‘ discouraged from asking for a buyback. Therefore, distributors are left with thousands of

. dollars of 1nventory that cannot be sold on the retarl market Third, the buyback rule applres

: fonly to resrgmng” IBOs Therefore, when an IBO purchases Quixtar products and is unhappy

w1th the product or has purchased too much product Qulxtar is not required to buy back the
l

." products from a current IBO. In addltron, while Rule 5. 3 :6.1.2 provides thiat the buyback rules

s not mtended to proh1b1t buy-back or exchange of products literature, or merchandising and

busmess-bulldlng aids upon mutual agreement between an IBO and one of his or her personally ~
registered IBOs under circumstances other than those wherein an IBO has elected to resign,”

there is no requirement that Quixtar buy back any product See Exhibit 8, Business Reference

: Gu1de at D-22 Thus, there is no guarantee that a current IBO can return the products, and that

lack of a guarantee violates the Amway buy-back rule. Most products sold to distributors are

never bought back by Quixtar, regardless of the desires of the lower level distributors.

57.  The Kingpin Corporations’ buyback rule for its “tools and functions” sales is

-similarly illusory. The policy provides for a refund on “commercially reasonable” terms, but

‘ those terms are dictated by the Kingpins. In practice, the l(mgpm Corporations elther refuse to

buy—back any “tools and functrons matenals or pay only a fractlon of the original purchase

' _pnce as compensatlon Whlle Qurxtar instructs dlstnbutoxs that the “tools and functlons”
" ;matenals are necessary, metar’s Rules of Conduct 5 3 6.3 prov1des that for these purchases

;:’“the corporatlon cannot assrst in procunng such refund . See Exhibit 8, Business Reference

..+ COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
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See Exhlb“t-‘S Busmess Reference Gulde at E-3 and E—5 Qulxtar by 1ts own rule does not .-
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58.  The Ten Customer Rule: The “ten customer rule” approved by the FTC in

Anjway proj)ided that “distributors may not receive a performance bonus unless they prove a

sale to each of ten different retail customers during each month....The ten customer rule is

enforced by “Amway and the Direct Distributors....” Amtvay, 93 F.T.C. 618 at [72-75]. The

; FTC added ' [p]yramrd sales plans based on inventory loadmg or headhunting fees create an

“mcentlve for recrurtlng rather than selling products to consumers . Amway’s ten-customer

 rule deters inventory loading by sponsoring distributors. ’? Id. at 142-147 Quixtar does not

' enforce the ten customer rule and, indeed, tac1tly approves systematic noncompliance with it.

59‘., First, by Qulxtar s own deﬁmtron sales to individuals who are affiliated with
QuiXtar in some manner, and who are thus not retail customers, count as sales to customers,
contrary to what the FTC Amway Order contemplated. Quixter’s Member/Client Volume Rule

in the Rules of Conduct Section D-19 Rule 4.22 provides:

In order to obtain the right to earn a Performance Bonus on downline volume during a
given month, an IBO must: (a) make not less than one sale to each of 10 different retail
customers (e g., Members or Clients); or (b) have at least 50 PV of sales to any number
of retail customers; or (c) have $100 at Member/Client Volume Cost. Member/Client
Volume Rule Cost shall mean the published IBO cost for all items or any orders sold to
a Member or Client, or the actual price paid to Partner Stores by Members or Clients. If
‘applicable, Partner Store Member/Client Volume Rule Cost is applied in the month
when the Corporation credits Partner Store Volurrie to an IBO’s business.

The Rules of Conduct define the terms “member” and “chen as follows:

, rMember ‘A registered customer, who for a fee mey purchase products and services at
'f‘preferred prlcmg and be entltled to an array of other member beneﬁts

‘ ;’»:,:;Chent (A retarl customer reglstered with Qurxtar who has the ability to purchase

< requlre IBOs to sell products to retall customers unafﬁhated w1th the scheme in order to qualify

es the FTC’s ten customer rule because

uﬁaﬁilrated :retaxl customers.
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60. Second, Quixtar does not even enforce the ten customer rule as written. In order

s’to appear to enforce this rule, Quixtar created a “self-repjorting” system for distributors to
‘ , |

certify that they comply with this policy. Quixtar knows that this rule is not followed and that

‘the Kingpins uniformly instruct the downline distributor‘s to “check” the ten customer box on

therr reportmg form, regardless of whether they have mafle ten sales to retail customers.

61. All of the defendants — Quixtar, 1ts ngpin dlstnbutors and the Kingpin

” Corporatlons — are aware of, approve, promote, and facrlltate the systematic noncompliance

. w1th or breach of the rules that purportedly protect agam st the operation of a pyramid scheme,

as d1scussed in the Amway FTC Order. Quixtar’s rules goveming pyramid schemes are

therefore a sham.

Class Action Allegations

62.  This action is brought by plaintiffs as a clajlss action pursuant to Federal Rule of
|

Civil Procedure 23. , o
63.  Plaintiffs seek relief on behalf of themselv?es and a nationwide class of all

persons who were Quixtar distributors from January 2003 until the present and who were

injured as a result of defendants’ illegal pyramid scheme lkthe “class”). Excluded from the

class are the defendants, their employees, family'm‘e"rnber 5, and affiliates.

64._ Plamtlffs also seek relief on behalf of them selves and a subclass for the -

“ ‘Callforma State law clarms whrch mcludes all persons who are members of the class and who

o were or are Qurxtar drstnbutors res1dent in Cahforma (the “subclass”)

numhe'r m_the thousands and joinder
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Whether defendants were operating an unlawful pyramid scheme;

Whether distributors paid money toj defendants in exchange for (1) the
ﬁght to sell a product and (2) the nght to receive, in return for recruiting
others in to the program, rewards which were unrelated to the sale of the

product to retail consumers; |

Whether distributors were required to make an investment into the
pyramid scheme;

Whether defendants enforced the 70% rule;

Whether defendants enforced the bhy-back rule;

Whether defendants enforced the ten customer rule;

Whether defendants’ conduct constjitutes an “Endless Chain” under the
California Penal Code; ‘

Whether defendants omitted to infdrm plaintiffs and the plaintiff class
that they were entering into an illegal pyramid scheme where the
overwhelming majority of participants lose money;

Whether defendants engaged in acth of mail and/or wire fraud in direct
violation of RICO; |
Whether and to what extent the coniduct has caused injury to the plaintiff

and the plalntlff class,

'Whether defendants’ conduct constltutes an unlawful unfa1r and

k

. fraudulent busmess practlce under 1he Callforma Busmess and

fhWhether defendants’ conduct constltutes false advertxsmg under the

R Cahforma Busmess and Professwns Code

24 o
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| unconscionable, but do claim the arbitration provision con
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67.

These and other questions of law and/or fact are common to the class and the

subclass, and predominate over any question affecting only individual class members.

68.

The ‘plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the class and the subclass in

that plaintiffs were distributors for Quixtar and lost money as a result of the pyramid scheme.

A

69.

tand skllled in complex class action htlgauon

-170.

'AT‘he plaintiffs will fairly and adeqﬁately represent the interests of the class and
1’ ‘;’».the subclass in that plaintiﬂ‘s; claims are typical of those of the class and plaintiffs’ interests are

0 'fully ahgned with those of the class. The plamt1ffs have retained counsel who is experienced

Class action treatment is superior to the alternatives, if any, for the fair and

efficient adjudication of the controversy alleged herein, because such treatment will permit a

. . |
large number of similarly-situated persons to prosecute their common claims in a single forum

simultaﬂecusly, efficiently and without unnecessary duplication of evidence, effort, and

expense that numerous individual actions would engender.

71.

The plaintiffs know of no difficulty likely io be encountered in the management

of this action that would preclude its maintenance as a class action.

- (Judgment Declaring Quixtar’s Arbitration A
S

25

urall g and substantlvely unconsclonablé.’

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

greement Unconscionable)

The plaintiffs‘re?allege the foregoing paragraphs as though fully set forth herein

Plaintiffs and the class do not claim the Qilixtar Registration Agreement is

taincd w1th1n the Registration

an arbitration provision.

cdto plaintiffs and the plaintiff class

basns i The plamtlffs and plamtlff class were not giVen ‘any opportunity

- COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JU

RY TRIAL
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‘to negotiate the terms of the arbitration provision. As such, the arbitration provision is

'tenns,exalnples of which, while not exhaustive, are as follows:

; unilater"al nghtto modify the arbitration provision renders

procedurally unconscionable.

' 76 Quixtar’s arbitration provision is permeated with substantively unconscionable

»»‘__77. Quixtar’s arbitration provision incorporate“‘s Quixtar’s Rules of Conduct.

Qulxtar’s Rules of Conduct grant Quixtar the power to umlaterally modify the terms of the

- arbltratlon prows1on at any time, thereby rendering the arlpltrauon prowsmn illusory. Quixtar’s

|

 the arbitration agreement

Substautl_i./ely"unconscionable.
- 78. Quixtar’s Rules of Conduct provide an inherently biased arbitrator training and
arbitrator selection process. Forcing IBOs to arbitrate in an inherently biased arbitral forum
renders thewar‘bitration provlsion substantively unconsciorlable. ‘ f po
Qulxtar’s Rules of Conduct require arb1trat1on to take place in the J.LA.M.S.

arb1tral forum The J.A.M.S. arbltral forum requires an md1v1dual IBO to pay “location” costs

that total $18 000 00 for a three day trial. Most dlstnbutors and class members, who have each

already lost thousands of dollars during their mvolvement with the defendants, do not have the

finanmal means to pay these excessive hearing fees. Accordmgly these prohibitively expensive

, arbltratxon 'costs preclude distributors from vindicating the ir rights and render Quixtar’s

arbitrary two year statute of

'ainst Qutxtar Here, plaintiffs seek

r F year statu_te of limitations.

Yo

RYTRIAL . .~ .
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Quixtar’s arbitr limitations period severely restricts an
ary P ‘

and 1s therefore substantively unconscionable.

81 .Qulxtar s arbitration provision and Rules o

bnnglng a class actlon in arbitration. The distributors hav:

" mvolvement and are unable to afford to bring individual c

IBO’s right to bring statutory claims
f Conduct prevent an IBO from

e all lost money through their, Quixtar -

laims in arbitration. Accordingly,

Qulxtar s class actlon prohibition renders the arbitration provision subétantively

unconscmnable

82 Qulxtar’s Rules of Conduct proVide a man

provide that the distributor must submit his claim to Quixt

latory pre-arbitration “conciliation

"pro'cess.”» The intent of this “process” is to stifle claims against Quixtar. The Rules of Conduct

ar, and allow Quixtar, the offending

party to reSolve the claim. This biased pre-arbitration reqhirement is intended to deter

drstnbutors from mdlcatmg their rights. Accordingly, Qulxtar s pre-arbitration conciliation

process is substantrvely unconscionable.

83. Accordingly, the Court should declare thatj
procedurally and sobstantively unconscionable and that th
before thlsCourt |

SECOND CLAIM FOR

Quixtar’s arbitration provision is

e plaintiffs’ claims are properly

CLIEF

T 84 The Qulxtar/Klngpm Enterpnse isan assoc

(RICO 18 U.S.C. § 1962(a))

iation in fact of entities and

in 18 U.S.C. § 1961(4). It is

unt11 the present both dates being

uryear, Georg1a Lee Puryear, and

“COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL _
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aE World Wide Group, Britt Worldwide, American Multimedia, Britt Management, Bill Britt and

eg Bntt, were members of the Quixtar/Kingpin Enterprlse

86 From at least January 2003 and cont1nu1ng untll the present, both dates belng

| B approx1mate and inclusive, the defendants Quixtar, Ron Puryear Georgia Lee Puryear, and

i World Wlde Group, Britt Worldwide, American Multlmeﬁha, Brltt Management, Bill Britt and

] eggy Bntt and others assomated together and with othets for the purpose of, among other

| t_hlngs; executlng a scheme to defraud through a pattem of racketeering consisting of distinct

: :acts ’ Vntall and wire fraud - The assoc1atlon 1n fact of the defendants and others constituted an
"“‘enterpnse” as deﬁned by Tltle 18, United States Code, Sectlon 1961(4). The Quixtar/Kingpin
Enterprlse engaged in and affected interstate and foreign commerce. Among other thmgs the
Quixtar/Kingpin Enterprise transacts business through theiuse of the United States mails and
the use of interstate telephone wires. The Qulxtar/Klngpm Enterprise advertises, markets, and
sells goods and services throughout the United States.

87 The defendants are distinct from the Qulxtar/Klngpm Enterprise. Each

|| defendant has perpetrated particular racketeering acts, but each defendant is a separate

individual or entity from the Quixtar/Kingpin Enterprise.

88.  The pattern of racketeering activity alleged below is distinct from the

‘| - Quixtar/Kingpin Enterprise. Each act of racketeering activity is distinct from the

in Enterprise in that each is a separate crime committed by an entity or individual

xtar/ngpm Entetonse isan assooiation of ‘entities and individuels. The
is has the comrnon purpose of di.str'ibutingoroducts and “tOOIs and
u tét/Kingpin Enterprise has an ongoing structure and/or
poorted by ‘p:e‘rSOnnel and/or associétes wnh continuing functions or duties.

P
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s 89 To further their goals, which were to (a) eam money through fraudulent means,
(b) 'e'r:itice ‘ﬁ'ihdividuals to purchase products from Quixtar and “tools and functions” materials
from ngplns by glvmg such individuals the false i nnpre$s1on that they would be able to

I‘CCI'UIt others to purchase Quixtar products, and (c) reap large profits for themselves based on

‘false representatlons members of the Quixtar/Kingpin Enterpnse engaged in various forms of

cnmmal act1v1ty, mcludmg (a) mail fraud (b) wire fraud, hnd (c) conspiracy.

s 90 ) By reason of defendants’ pattern of racketéenng actlvrty, plamtrffs and the class

have .been Jured and have lost rmlhons of dollars. Defehdants acts of mail and wire fraud

. were a prox1mate cause of the i 1njunes that plaintiffs and the class suffered.

91. From at least J anuary 2003 and continuing ;untll the present, both dates being
approximate‘ and inclusive, within the Northern District of California and elsewhere, the
deferrdants Quixtar, Ron Puryear, Georgia Lee Puryear, World Wide Group, Britt Worldwide,
Am_erican Multimedia, Britt Management, Bill Britt and Peggy Britt, all being employed by and
’associated with the Quixtar/Kingpin Enterprise did knowihgly, -willﬁllly and unlawfully
conduct and participate, directly and indirectly, in the conduct of the affairs of that enterprise
through a pattem of racketeering activity. ‘

1 : 92 The racketeering acts set out below, and others all had the same pattem and
|

smnlar purpose of defraudmg plaintiffs and the class for the benefit of defendants. Each

racketeenng act was related had a smular purpose, 1nvolved the same or similar participants :

‘omrrﬂnss_l\'onl and had s1rr11_1ar results affectmg smular plamtlffs and the class

| ma11 and wire fraud were also rela ted to each other in that they were ;
‘ ‘ ly,rnduce plamtlffs and the class to
amrdscheme and cause others to join the scheme. | |

Ry
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: ‘ 93 Defendants’ wrongful conduct has been and remains part of defendants’ ongoing

| way of domg business and constitutes a continuing threat to the property of plaintiffs and the

g class Wlthout the repeated acts of mail and wire fraud, defendants fraudulent pyramid
scheme would not have succeeded.

Revenue gained from the pattern of rackekeenng act1v1ty, which constitutes a

e ‘{94. ,_
; ‘s gmﬁcant portlon of the total income of defendants was reinvested in the operations of the

tar/ngpm Enterpnse for the followmg purposes: (a) to expand the operatlons of the

/ngpm Enterpnse through additional false and Lmsleadmg advertising and
pf();nct;onal materials aimed at recruiting new dlsmbutots, (b) to facilitate the execution of the
pyramin scheme; and (c) to convince current distributorsj to recruit new (iistributors, execute the
pyramid scheme, and purchase Quixtar products and “tools and functions” materials. The
plaintiffs and the class were injured by the reinvestment cf the racketeering income into the
quixtar/Kingpin Enterpﬁse because they invested millions of dollars of their own money
through tneir purchase of Quixtar products and “tools and functions” materials.

95.1 For the purpose of executing the scheme, and attempting to do so, the

,-defendants knowmgly and recklessly placed and caused to be placed in the Umted States mdil,

\
»“;or took or received therefrom matters or things to be senT to or delivered by the United States

' ma11 cons1$t1ng of, among other things, Qulxtar products b.nd literature, “tools and functions”
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" 1341.

~wire communications to and from all fifty states. o

iconsrstedof the followmg k

“‘CornniuniKate” system, which includes both interstate telephone and facsimile

commumcatlons

96. In connection with promoting their pyramﬂ scheme, the defendants mailed

product and “tools and functions™ invoices, letters, promotional materials, brochures, products
and checks to plalntlffs and the class and received commuh.lcatlons between and among

;:themselves by and through the Umted States mail, in all ﬁfty states, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §

f 97 - Defendants also engaged in wire fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1343, by,

“among other things, knowingly and recklessly transmitting or causing to be transmitted by

means of wire communications, in interstate and foreign commerce, materials promoting

defendants’ fraudulent pyramid scheme on Internet web sites, by facsimile and telephone,

_including promotional materials, registration information, product information, “tools and

functions” informatmn and invoices. The defendants mamtam websites on the Internet where
IBOs can and do purchase products and “tools and ﬁlnctlons” materials. Quixtar maintains a
website at the address www.quixtar.com, World Wide Group and World Wide Dream Builders

mamtaln a website at the address www.wwdb.com, and American Multimedia maintains a :

website at address www.ami-media.com. The defendants sent and received these interstate-

L 98; | g The pattem of racketeenng actlvrty through which the affairs of the -

1 Qulxtar/Klngpm Enterpnse were conducted and in whlch the defendants and others partlclpated

Racketeermg Act Numb [“ One 't . ' N |
. abot tJ anuary 2, 2005 plalntlff Blenn recelved ‘through the United States

.vs,
hY

'Maga;rne ‘Speclallyssue featunng the “New Quahﬁers of 2004,” whtch

;
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‘:'_'Puryear, World Wlde Group, Bntt Worldw1de, Amencan

[\ )

' promoted the Quixtar/Kingpin Enterprise and contained material false representations

4 regardmg the success that could be achieved through Qulxtar by purchasing products and

‘ -‘,,5‘;_recru1tmg others to do the same. As a result of his recerpt of the Achieve Magazine and the

representatlons contained therem plaintiff Blenn purchased Quixtar products, “tools and

' }ﬁmctlons” matenals and recruited others to do the same. ‘Plamtlff Blenn continued to receive

‘Q'ui‘Xtar magaz'ines and catalogs through the Unlted States mail during the first week of every
\,:month;th‘at he was a registered IBO. The Quixtar magazines and catalogs were sent on a

onthly basrs to plaintiff Blenn with the purpose and intent of promoting Quixtar’s pyramm :

*scheme, all in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1341.

Racketeering Act Number Two

100. On or about February 1, 2005, the defendant Quixtar distributed Quixtar
information by interstate wire transmissions over the worhd wide web. On that date, plaintiff
Blenn reviewed information on Quixtar’s web site. The Quixtar web sites promoted the
fraudulent pyramid scheme and contained material false representations regarding‘the wealth
that could be achieved by agreeing to be anIBO. Asa result of the representations on the web,

: 81te, plalntrff Blenn mamtamed his position as an IBO and continued to order Quixtar products
| and recrult others to do the same, all in v101at10n of 18 U. ‘S‘ C.§ 1343.

Racketeerl ng Act Numbel r Three

“ 101’. " On or about November 18 2003 the defendants Ron Puryear, Georgia Lee

Multlmedla, Bntt Management Blll :

w1re transmrssrons over the world

n for January 14 2004 in San Jose, "

2 f?’*'
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purchased “tools and functions” and followed the 1nstruct1ons contained therein. Defendants

" 'Ron Puryear Georgia Lee Puryear, World Wide Group, Brn:t Worldwide, American

Multlmedla Britt Management, Bill Britt and Peggy Britt posted the internet message to

"encourag'e current distributors to attend the convention where they would purchase products

~and “tools and functions” materials. On November 18, 2003, plaintiff Pokorny read the

information distributed by the defendants and purchased a ticket for “Dream Night 2004” using
the defendants’ World Wide Group’s website, all in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1343.

, Racketeermg Act Number Four

| : 102 On or about December 9, 2000, plaintiff Pokomy purchased a subscription for
Quixtar’s “CommuniKate” telephone and fax system and pnid a monthly fee for the Quixtar
CommuniKate message system until September 2006. Fronr December 2000 through
Septemhe'r 2006, plaintiff Pokorny received invoices from buixtar on a monthly basis through
the Unrted Staks mail in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1341. Thereafter, plaintiff Pokorny received .

interstate telephone and facsimile messages daily from Kirrgpins and IBOs outside of

California, affiliated with the World Wide Dream Builderstine of Sponsorship, until he

‘ terrmnated his IBO distributorship. These messages 1ncluded matenal false representations

| regardmg the necessrty of the “tools and functions” matenals and false representations

r regardmg the tremendous wealth opportunity that could be realized by bemg an IBO, all in

vrolatr n of18 u. S C. § 1343. | : |

Racketeerm Act Numbe Flve :

‘On or about January 5 2005 defendants World Wlde Group, Ron Puryear,

ket Order Form” for “Dream nght

b

’s ofﬁce 1n Seattle, Washington, to

.33

AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL




SCHILLER

LLP

FLEXNER

&

B OV E S,

CALIFORNI!tA

O AKLAND,

et

=R - 7. T N VO

RN RTNONR NN D = :

et

plamtlff Blenn s residence in San Joaquin County The order form contained advertisements

for vanous Dream Night Conventions in dlfferent cities m‘January 2005. One such convention

was in San Jose onlJ anuary 14, 2005, which plamtlff read about in the order form and attended.

Defendants World Wide Group, Ron Puryear, Georgia Lee Puryear, Bill Britt, Peggy Britt,

: :;Brltt Worldw1de American Multimedia and Bntt ManageJnent mailed the order form in order

to mduce current distributors to attend conventlons where ﬂxey would purchase products and

f“tools:and functlons” materials and listen to speeches and tips on how to recruit new

: dlstnbutors Plamtlﬂ" Blenn did purchase the “Dream nght 2005 ticket and attended the

.functlon all in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1341.

Racketeering Act Number Six

104.  On or about April 6, 2005, the defendants World Wide Group, Ron Puryear,
Georgia Lee Puryear, Bill Britt, Peggy Britt, Britt Worldwjide, American Multimedia and Britt
4 |
Managémerlt distributed their “Spring Leadership 2005” convention on the World Wide Group

website which took place April 22-24, 2005 in Las Vegas,?Nevada. | Defendants World Wide

‘ Group, Ron Puryear, Georgia Lee Puryear, Bill Britt, Peggy Britt, Britt Worldwide, American

Mulfixnédia and Britt Management posted the advertisement to induce distributors to attend the

Spnng Leadershlp 2005 convention, at which they would purchasoQuixtar products and “tools

fand functlons matenals and listen to speeches and tips on how to recruit new distributors. On

Apnl 6 005 P1a1nt1ff Blenn read the mformatlon distributed by the defendants and purchased

1343
1u1red, m(e_ngaging inthe

plarutiffs and the class would ‘

N

L ‘ﬂreasonably‘rely on thelr representatlons and omlssmns wlu ch _would result in the plaintiffs and

34
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an act1v1ty alleged in the First Clalm for Relief.

.

< P : ’

the class joining the fraudulent pyramid scheme and purchasing the products and “tools and

_functions™ materials.

¥ 106 Defendants knew that the misrepresentations and omissions described above in

: p‘romo’dngvand executing the fraudulent pyramid scheme w‘)vere material because they caused the
\

plamtlffs and the class to join and participate in the 1llegat pyramid scheme.

| 107 Had p1a1nt1ffs and the class known that defendants were promoting a fraudulent

| pyralmd scheme they would not have joined the pyram1d scheme.

: 1 8 Defendants acts of ma11 and wire fraud were a proxunate cause of the i 1nJur1es
that plamtlffs and the class suffered. By reason of defendants ' pattern of fraudulent conduct
plamtlffs and the class lost millions of dollars.

.’ 109. Under 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c), the plaintiffs and the class are entitled to treble their
general and special compensatory damages, plus interest, costs and attorney’s fees.

'THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(RICO 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c))

110.  The plaintiffs re-allege the foregoing paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.

111. Defendants are associated with the Quixtmﬁ(ingpin Enterprise. In violation of
18 U.S.C. § 1962(c), defendants conducted and/or particidated in the conduct of the affairs of
the Quixtar/Kingpin Enterprtse including, but not limited to participation in activities in

furtherance of defendants’ fraudulent pyramid scheme through the pattern of racketeering

Asw a d1rect and proxunate result of defendants v1olat10n of 1I8US.C. § 1962(c),

ixtar products and “tools and
he plaintiﬁ’s 'and the class were

{ o purchase the Quixtar products and
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the “tools and functlons” matenals constltute property of the plaintiffs and the plaintiff class

w1thm the meanmg of 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c).

113.: Under 18US.C. § 1964(c), the plaintiffs and the plaintiff class are entitled to

treble their general and special compensatory damages, plus interest, costs and attorney’s fees.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(RICO 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d))

: 1 14 The plaintiffs re-allege the foregoing paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.

s

pyranud scheme In accordance with that agreement defendants conspired to violate 18 U.S.C.

§ 1962(a) and (c), in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d).

116.

the plaintiffs and the class were injured by defendants’ unlawful conduct. The funds used to

purchase the Quixtar products and the “tools and functionfs” materials constitute property of the

plamtrffs and the class under 18 U. S C. § 1964(c).

117.

their general and specral compensatory damages plus mterest costs and attorney’s fees.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
('Unlawful Unfair and Fraudulent Business Practices Under the
California Business and Professions Chde § 17200, et seq.)

1 "1,8;

fully set forth herem

Defendants agreed to work together ina symbiotic relationship to carry on the

~ As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d),

Under 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c), plaintiffs and the plamtlff class are entitled to treble

The Plalntlffs and the subclass re-allege the foregoing paragraphs as though

id scheme or “endless chain” as
trllze.‘ﬂris'illegal pyramid scheme
7, in the fonn:of ‘Quixtar products and

to_mrecruit others to do the same.

JURY TRIAL
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120., Defendants are engaged in ongoing and continuous unlawful unfair, and
frauduient busmess acts or practlces and unfair, deceptive, untrue and misleading advertising
within ithe meaning of the California Business and Professions Code § 17200, et seq. The acts
or practices alleged herein constitute a pattern of behavior, pursued as wrongful business
practice that has victimized and continues to victimize thousands of California consumers.

121.  Pursuant to California Business and Professions Code § 17200, an “unlawful”
business practice is one that violates California law. Defendants’ business practices are
unlawful‘ because they involve the creation and promotion of an illegal pyramid scheme or
“endless chain” under California law.

122. Putsuant to California Business and Professions Code%§ 17200, an “unfair”
business practice includes a practice that offends an established public policy, or that is
irnmoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous or substantially inj urious to consumers..
Defendants’ promotion and operation of an illegal pyramid scheme isi unethical, oppressive and
unscrupulous in that defendants are duping California consumers out of millions of dollars
through their illegal pyramid scheme.

‘1 123. Pursuant to California Busmess and Professions Code § 17200, a “fraudulent”
business practice is one that is likely to deceive the public. Defendants’ business practice is
fraudulent in that they have deceived the public by misrepresenting thie nature of their business.
For example; defendants have made numerous misrepresentations abotut the income that can be

realized by becoming a distributor and have failed to inform the public that they are openly an

illegal pyramid scheme. California citizens have relied, and continue t}o rely on defendants?

' misrepresentations and omissions to their detriment. | :

124, Defendants’ business practices are “unfair business practices” within the 4 '
‘ J . Lo r
meanlng of the Busmess and Professions Code § 17200, et seq. in that they are engaged in a

- |
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1 | practice that offends established public policy, and/ or is immoral, unethical, oppressive,
2 | unscrupulous or substantially injurious to consumers.
3 125. Defendants’ business prabtices are “fraudulent” within the meaning of the
4 Business and Professions Code §17200, ef seq. in that members of the public are deceived and
| Z continue to be deceived by the business practice.
7 126.  As aresult of their unlawful acts, defendants have reaped and continue to reap
. g || unfair benefits and illegal profits at the expenses of plaintiffs and the class members.
: 9 | Defendants should be made to disgorge these ill-gotten gains and restore to the plaintiffs and
g < “10 the class the wrongfully taken revenue.
: . lkl SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
. N '12 (California Business and Professions Code § 17500, et seq.)
: 5 13 False Advertising
- o | :§14 127.  The Plaintiffs and the subclass re-allege the foregoing paragraphs as though
e g ‘:15 fully set forth herein.
e,
w : . 16 128. Defendants’ business acts, false advertisements and materially misleading
dno 117

omissions alleged herein constitute unfair trade practices and false advertising, in violation of -

the California Business and Professions Code § 17500, ef seq.
129. Defendants engaged in false, unfair and misleading business practices,
consisting of false advertising and materially misleading omissions tjhat were likely to deceive

‘the‘ public and include, but are not limited to:

a. defendants’ failing to disclose to consumers that they were entering into -
an unlawful pyramid scheme; ‘

f | o

b. defendants’ misrepresenting the amount of money that a distributor

would earn;

38
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1 c. defendants’ misrepresenting that purchasing.‘ the “tools and functions”
2 materials was necessary in order to be a successful distributor; and
. 3 d. defendants’ misrepresenting that distributors would not need to engage
4
in retail sales to make money and instead would earn the promised
5 |
o . . .
| 6 revenue by simply self-consuming products and convincing others to do
7 the same.
;“ 8 130. Defendants’ marketing and promotion of the illegal pyramid scheme constitutes
L 9 | misleading, unfair and fraudulent advertising in connection with their false advertising to
L ‘
Y < 10 | jnduce consumers to join the illegal pyramid scheme. Defendants knew or should have known,
X = .
W oo i in the exercise of reasonable care, that the statements they were making were untrue or
-~ o
oy 12
o misleading and did deceive members of the public. Defendants’ knew or should have known,
P 13
< “
oo 14 in the exercise of reasonable care, that California citizens, including plaintiff, would rely, and
o 2 g 15 did in fact rely on defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions.
¥ = g H i
< ' 1 . . .
‘ :;’ | 16 131. Defendants should be ordered to disgorge, for the benefit of the plaintiffs and
- :z 17 the plaintiff class their Quixtar profits and compensation and/or make restitution to the plaintiff
oY 18 and the class.
oo | PRAYER FOR RELIEF
i 19
20 132. The named plaintiffs and the plaintiff class request the following relief:
], | 21 a. Judgment declaﬁng Quixtar’s arbitration provision unconscionable and
unenforceable;

Certification of the class;
A jury trial and j{‘ldgmcnt against defendants;

Damages in the amount of the named plaintiffs’ and the class’ financial

loss as a result oﬁ defendants’ conduct and for injury to their business

and property, all és a result of defendants’ violations of § 1964(a), (c)
- I
{ 39 '
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1 and (d) and that such sum be trebled in accordance with 18 U.S.C. §
2 1964(c);
3 e. Restitution and disgorgement of monies, pursuant to the California
4 ‘
Business and Professions Code;
5
» f. The cost of suit including reasonable attorney’s fees in accordance with
7 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c);
. 8 g. For general, compensatory and exemplary damages in an amount yet to
S 9 be ascertained; and
Y < 10 h For such other damages, relief and pre and post judgment interest as the
X =z ‘ ’ ‘
M 1 ! Court may deem just and proper.
L (: . 12 ‘\
N
S U
; z 15
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- 16
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

[

Plaintiffs hereby demand a jury trial as provided by Rule 38(a) of the Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure.

Dated: January 10, 2007 Respectfully submitted,

By: (, .
David W. Shapiro
California Bar No. 219265
1999 Harrison Street, Suite 900
Oakland, California 94612
Tel.: (510) 874-1000
Fax: (510) 874-1460
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Stuart H. Singer (Pro Hac Vice to be Filed)
Carlos M. Sires (Pro Hac Vice to be Flled)
401 East Las Olas Boulevard

Suite 1200

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301

Tel.: (954) 356-0011 '
Fax: (954) 356-0022 :,

Willie E. Gary (Pro Hac Vice to be Filed)
GARY, WILLIAMS, PARENTI, FINNEY,
LEWIS, MCMANUS, WATSON & .. |
SPERANDO \ o
221 E. Osceola St. !
Stuart, FL 34994 |
Tel.: (772) 283-8260 :
Fax: (772) 220-3343
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